MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
OF THE CITY OF FAIRWAY, KANSAS

The Planning Commission of the City of Fairway, Kansas (the "Commission") conducted a meeting
on Monday, October 27, 2025. The meeting was called to order at 6:00 P.M.

Present: Commissioners Michael Tamburini, Jeremy Deeken, Rorric Pfalzgraf, Michael
Hoelscher.
Absent: Commissioner Ben Zwick.

Presiding: Chair Wendy Bailey.

Staff Present: City Clerk Abbie Aldridge; Zoning Counsel Anna Krstulic; Community

Development Director Basil Alani.

Visitors: James Engle, of James Engle Custom Homes, 7726 Delmar, Prairie Village,

1.

Kansas; Adam Pfeifer, APD Studios, 12214 West 79" Terrace, Lenexa, Kansas.

INTRODUCTION OF NEW PLANNING COMMISSIONER

Chair Bailey introduced new Planning Commission Member, Michael Tamburini.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chair Bailey asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the September 29, 2025 meeting.

MOTION: Motion was made by Commissioner Deeken to approve the September 29,
2025 minutes. Commissioner Pfalzgraf seconded the motion.

The motion carried unanimously.

OLD BUSINESS

SITE PLAN REVIEW — 3517 EASTVALE. FAIRWAY, KANSAS, AS SUBMITTED BY D.

LANCE LARSON, PROPERTY OWNER., REQUEST EXCEPTION TO GREENSPACE
REQUIREMENT FOR AN ADDITION AND POOL — APPLICATION WITHDRAWN.

Chair Bailey stated that this application has been withdrawn.

SITE PLAN REVIEW — 5700 CANTERBURY, FAIRWAY, KANSAS. AS SUBMITTED
BY BRIAN STANDLEY OF JAMES ENGLE CUSTOM HOMES. PROPERTY OWNER,
REQUEST FOR NEW SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE WITH EXCEPTIONS TO THE
WINDOW HIERARCHY ON THE SIDE ELEVATIONS.

Chair Bailey asked for the staff report.



PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 27, 2025 MEETING MINUTES

Director Alani referred the Commission to the report in the packet. This application was
continued from the September 29, 2025 Planning Commission meecting. The applicant
submitted revised plans which changed the windows on the left and right elevations, but the
application still requires an exception for the hierarchy.

Staff is not opposed to the application and exception requests. If the Planning Commission
grants approval, staff recommends the following conditions:

1. One electronic complete set of plans must be submitted for plan review and
approval.

2. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code.

3. Project must comply with all City Ordinances, the 2012 International Building Code
and other incorporated technical codes.

4. Application and approval are void if the building permit is not obtained within one
year of the date of Planning Commission approval.

5. Applicant will need to install two large shade trees.

Chair Bailey asked if there were questions for staff.

Director Alani explained that on the left elevation, the exception relates to the alignment of the
window in the basement above the double windows in the back and the hierarchy of the four
windows in the basement with the upper windows. The applicant moved the window in the
basement to be more in alignment and the applicant is retaining the four windows in the
basement. On the right elevation, the exception applies to the three upper windows that do not
have a window below them.

Chair Bailey asked for questions from the Commission. Hearing none, she asked the applicant
to address the Commission.

James Engle, of James Engle Custom Homes, 7726 Delmar, Prairie Village, stated that he is
the applicant.

Responding to Commissioner Pfalzgraf’s question concerning the large flat wall on the left
elevation that has no windows, Mr. Engle explained that there is a fireplace that is centered in
that area and there are bookcases on either side of the fireplace. As for whether there is an
opportunity to add some kind of feature to the flat wall on the left elevation, Mr. Engle
explained that they could add two transom windows above the bookcases.

As for the right elevation, Mr. Engle explained that the three windows are in the garage. The
one window on the big wall to the right of the garage is the prep kitchen window. The prep

kitchen opens up to an outdoor area and there is another fireplace behind that wall so that area
is like an enclosed porch.

Mr. Engle offered a copy of the floor plan to Commissioners for their review.

2



PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 27, 2025 MEETING MINUTES

Chair Bailey asked for additional discussion from the Commission.

Commissioner Pfalzgraf stated that on the left elevation, he would like to see the transom
windows on the big flat wall. He thinks the right elevation is fine because he did not realize it
was an open space and because it has a lower roof line.

The other Commissioners agreed, stating they are in favor of granting the exceptions.

Chair Bailey asked for further discussion from the Commission. Hearing none, she asked for
a motion.

MOTION: Motion was made by Commissioner Pfalzgraf to approve the Site Plan —
5700 Canterbury, Fairway, Kansas, as submitted by Brian Standley of James Engle
Custom Homes, Property Owner, request for new single-family residence with
exceptions to the window hierarchy on the side elevations, subject to staff
recommendations, with the additional requirement that transom windows be added on
the left elevation to be verified and approved by staff. Commissioner Deeken seconded
the motion.

The motion carried unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS

SITE PLAN REVIEW - 5300 PAWNEE LANE, FAIRWAY, KANSAS, AS SUBMITTED
BY SPENCER AND LOGAN DEAN. PROPERTY OWNERS. REQUEST EXCEPTION TO
FENCE LOCATION ON A CORNER LOT.

Chair Bailey asked for the staff report.

Director Alani referred the Commission to the report in the packet. The property is a standard
corner lot with an existing 4-foot wood fence. The applicant is requesting an exception for a
new 6-foot wood privacy fence in the same location of the existing fence to project in front of
the building line of the adjacent dwelling unit. The applicant submitted engineering analysis
indicating there are no sight line issues and also submitted a letter of support from the back
neighbor.

Staff is not opposed to the requested exception and there are no sight-line concerns. If the
Planning Commission grants the requested exception, staff recommends the following
conditions:

1. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code.
2. Application and approval are void if the building permit is not obtained within one
year of the date of Planning Commission approval.

Chair Bailey asked if there were questions for staff.
3



PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 27, 2025 MEETING MINUTES

Responding to Commissioner Pfalzgraf’s question, Director Alani confirmed that the 4-foot
fence is existing and the applicant wants to replace it with a 6-foot fence. The applicant also
submitted an engineering study regarding the site that concludes there are no sight line issues
with the 6-foot fence.

Chair Bailey asked for further discussion. Hearing none, she asked for a motion.

MOTION: Motion was made by Commissioner Deeken to approve the Site Plan —
5300 Pawnee Lane, Fairway, Kansas, as submitted by Spencer and Logan Dean,
property owners, request for exception to fence location on a corner lot, subject to staff
recommendations. Commissioner Pfalzgraf seconded the motion.

The motion carried unanimously.

SITE PLAN REVIEW — 6018 BUENA VISTA ST.. FAIRWAY, KANSAS. AS SUBMITTED
BY ADAM ANTHONY PFEIFER OF APD STUDIOS ON BEHALF OF MATT ADAM
DEVELOPMENT CO. INC., PROPERTY OWNER., REQUEST FOR A NEW SINGLE-
FAMILY RESIDENCE WITH EXCEPTIONS TO THE WINDOW HIERARCHY ON
FRONT AND SIDE ELEVATIONS.

Chair Bailey asked for the staff report.

Director Alani referred the Commission to the report in the packet. The applicant has submitted
a request for a new single-family residence. The height of the structure will be 29 feet 10 1/8
inches from the existing grade. The watershed analysis shows with the proposed hardscape,
there will be no change in drainage to the street and the rear. The applicant is secking an
exception for the front, right and left elevation facades to have the upper windows not aligning
with the lower windows. The applicant is also removing a large s hade tree and will be required
to plant two new large shade trees.

Staff is not opposed to the application and requested exceptions. If the Planning Commission
grants approval, staff recommends the following conditions:

1. One electronic complete set of plans must be submitted for plan review and
approval.

2. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code.

3. Project must comply with all City Ordinances, the 2012 International Building Code
and other incorporated technical codes.

4. Application and approval are void if the building permit is not obtained within one
year of the date of Planning Commission approval.

5. Plant two large shade trees in front of the front building line.

Chair Bailey asked if there were questions for staff. She asked for clarification of the window
hierarchy issues on the elevations.

4



PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 27, 2025 MEETING MINUTES

Director Alani explained that on the front elevation, one window is not lining up with the lower
windows. On the right elevation, the upper window is not lining up with the lower windows.
On the left elevation, there are double windows with no windows beneath them.

Director Alani added that the applicant did add shutters on the right elevation because the site
plan does not meet the window/door opening requirements.

Responding to Chair Bailey’s question, Director Alani confirmed that on the left elevation, the
window hierarchy requirements are not met because there are no windows below the double
window. He explained that the Code states that the windows on the second story need to align
with the lower windows so when there are no lower windows, he believes an exception would
be required; however, that language would be up for interpretation by the Commission and
Zoning Counsel.

Chair Bailey recalled that when that language was added to the Code it was based on
misalignment or size of windows from the first and second floors. She does not recall that
there being windows on the second floor and not on the first floor was discussed, so she agrees
that whether that scenario would require an exception is up to the discretion of the Commission.

Chair Bailey asked if there was additional discussion. Hearing none, she asked for the
applicant to address the Commission.

Adam Pfeifer, APD Studios, 12214 West 79" Terrace, Lenexa, Kansas, stated that he is the
applicant.

Responding to Chair Bailey’s question, Mr. Pfeifer confirmed that they added the shutters on
just two windows to achieve the massing requirements based on the zoning regulations. They
believe that it makes sense to add shutters to the two windows based on the style of the home,
which is a story and one half with a gable in the middle.

Chair Bailey asked for discussion from the Commission.

There is a discussion concerning the two windows with shutters, of which Chair Bailey is not
in favor. Commissioner Hoelscher agreed that having only two windows with shutters stood
out to him.

Mr. Pfeifer explained that the ability to add additional windows is limited based on the floor
plan and that adding more shutters would be easier to accomplish. He discussed difficulties in
adding more shutters on the front because of where the windows are located on the porch and
the fact that one window is relatively close to the corner. He also addressed the alignment
situation on the front, noting that the porch roof comes out significantly so that the
misalignment will not be noticed from the front yard or sidewalk.



PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 27, 2025 MEETING MINUTES

Chair Bailey stated that she would be fine if shutters were not added under the porch or on the
two windows that are built into the roof; however, she would like to see them on the flat surface
areas. She added another alternative would be to create a false window, with a fake window
and fake shutters.

Commissioner Deeken agrees that having consistency on the fagade is good. He does not think
that shutters should be required on every window, but only on the front fagade for consistency.

Commissioner Pfalzgraf thinks it looks okay as it is, but agrees it might make more sense if
the shutters were consistent. He thinks the hierarchy is logical based on the shape of the house
and has no objection to approving the hierarchy exceptions.

Commissioner Hoelscher pointed out that it would be difficult to add shutters in some areas so
it would end up being a hodgepodge of shutters and no shutters.

Responding to Chair Bailey’s question, Director Alani stated that the window/door opening
requirement for each facade is 15 percent. Before adding the shutters, the window and door
openings are about 8.8 percent, or 65 to 75 square feet. Effectively, two additional windows
would be needed to meet the requirement.

Chair Bailey stated that she would rather remove the four shutters and approve an exception to
the window/door opening requirements.

Commissioner Pfalzgraf pointed out that if the applicant adds the false window and removes
the shutters, the window/door openings would be at about 12 percent.

Chair Bailey asked if the Commission would allow the window upstairs to be larger and not
be hierarchical, whether that would solve the problem.

Mr. Pfeifer responded that the window upstairs is in a toilet room and a bathroom. It is four
inches off the wall so it would cause problems if the window size was increased. He would
also prefer that the window remain centered on the ridge because if it moves off the ridge, it
will look more like an accident.

Commissioner Pfalzgraf suggested that the shutters be removed from the first-floor window,
the shutters on the second-floor windows be retained and that the Commission then grant an
exception for less than 15 percent window/door openings. He proposes removing the shutters
from the far-right window, keeping the shutters on the left, and keeping the upstairs window
as is.

Mr. Pfeifer agrees to those suggestions.

Commissioner Hoelscher agrees the suggested revisions would be a good compromise.



PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 27, 2025 MEETING MINUTES

Chair Bailey asked if there were additional discussions concerning the hierarchy of the
windows themselves and the exceptions being requested. Hearing none, she asked for a
motion.

MOTION: Motion was made by Commissioner Pfalzgraf to approve the Site Plan
Review — 6018 Buena Vista Street, Fairway, Kansas, as submitted by Adam Anthony
Pfeifer of APD Studios, on behalf of Matt Adam Development Co., Inc., property
owner, request for a new single-family residence, subject to staff recommendations,
with a requirement that the site plan be revised on the right elevation to remove the
shutters from the rearmost window, approval of the exception for the window
hierarchy, and approval of an exception to the 15 percent window/door requirement.
Commissioner Hoelscher seconded the motion.

The motion carried unanimously.

REVIEW PLANNING COMMISSION BYL AWS.

City Clerk Aldridge explained that the Commission must approve the Bylaws every year and
there have been no changes from last year.

Zoning Counsel Krstulic stated that the Commission can remove the annual review
requirement because there is no statutory requirement that the Bylaws be reviewed every year.

Chair Bailey asked for further discussion. Hearing none, she asked for a motion.

MOTION: Motion was made by Commissioner Deeken to approve the Planning
Commission Bylaws. Commissioner Pfalzgraf seconded the motion.

The motion carried unanimously.

ADDITIONAL BUSINESS

NEXT MEETING

City Clerk Aldridge stated that the next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for
November 24, 2025.

ADJOURNMENT

Chair Bailey asked for a motion to adjourn.

MOTION: Motion was made by Commissioner Tamburini to adjourn. Commissioner
Pfalzgraf seconded the motion.

The motion carried unanimously.
7



PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 27, 2025 MEETING MINUTES

Hearing no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:30 P.M.

ABbie Aldridge, Cify Clerk




